CHAPTER IV
THE NEW SCHOOL

The years 1924, 1925 and 1926 were to be yeagseat importance in the
school's growth and development. The inspectoegort for 1925 constitutes a
pleasant change from those of previous years. hEadmaster’s ‘Active Guidance’ is
particularly praised, and no serious weaknesscwrded; the third year suggests good
prospects for the future, and this greatly improftdre is marred only by frequent
changes of staff which were still having an unsejtleffect. The staff in 1924
consisted of Mr. Barry, eight secondary teacher of whom was the Senior
Woman Adviser, and fourteen primary teachers, ohialgi an infants’ mistress. There
were in addition visiting teachers of cookery, coenaml, art, music and physical
education (referred to by Mr. Barry as ‘drill"). h& school roll was eight hundred and
sixty seven, and in March, 1924, the third yeas<lsat the Intermediate Examination
in a variety of subjects; nineteen out of the tweihtee pupils presented passed the
examination. This success provided a valuable dation for presentation in the
Scottish leaving Certificate examination in 1926.

The report for 1924 reflects the same high staiglas the previous report,
save for the criticisms of the English departmehicl had suffered from frequent
staff changes. In March 1926, for the first tirttee school presented pupils for the
Scottish Leaving Certificate Examination at theheiglevel in English, Mathematics,
French and Latin; in the month of June the redudtsame known. There were eight
passes in Higher English, two in Higher French, onéligher Latin, one in Lower
Latin, one in Higher Art and one in Higher Mathemosit one pupil gained three
Higher passes and two Lower passes — which wouthgimly have constituted a
‘group’ of passes as required for university entean Thus the school’s first attempt
at Scottish Leaving Certificate presentation, wiole a modest scale, had been a
considerable success. The numbers of pupils iedolvas not great, but nonetheless
a start had been made, and a tradition of sucdgmsfsentation had been begun.

Other beginnings of great future events were taknace; the education
authority’s property committee had been prevailpdruto purchase Westermains
House, formerly a home for alcoholics, on March!, 31926, and the infants were
transferred to this building in April, 1926; secanyg pupils too went to Westermains
for woodwork and cookery. The grounds of Westenmavere in the future to be the
site of the school’s present building and its nesersion; from 1926 great potential
for expansion of all kinds was now established ratwvas by this time known as St.
Ninian’s R.C. High School, though not yet officialecognised as such.

The school, like most other organisations in HBmitavas dislocated by the
General Strike of May, 1926, particularly in two ygasince so many of the pupils
were the children of miners, great hardship mustehexisted, and secondly the
involvement of the transport workers in the stiikevented the attendance at school
of many pupils relying on train and bus servicdhe Croy pupils and those from
Stirlingshire were absent in large numbers as lsdhe transport workers were on
strike. However, by May 1% 1926, at least the Croy pupils were no doubt js{yp
being transported to school by bus.

The 1926 report suggests a good deal of roomn@rovement in several
subjects, while admitting that progress was goderobably the most significant
comment is to the effect that the efforts of thieast are once again hampered by lack
of accommodation. The rapidly-growing school waggoowing the Union Street



premises, and if progress was to be maintainechensecondary department, the
possibility of new accommodation being needed wesoiming a definite reality.
Science, for example, was particularly restricted llack of any laboratory
accommodation. By August, 1927, the roll was 9388 of whom were in the
secondary department. The 1927 report is morergesen its comments; ‘this
budding secondary school is developing in a vepnasing fashion... Management
of the school is energetic, tactful and kindly’.héBe words obviously reflect the
genuine dedication of Mr. Barry; as a disciplinar@nd authoritarian he was well-
known, but the real fruit of his work was to beradition of successful examination
presentation and of a more open-minded and humgmeach to education than that
which had characterised the work of his predecsesatio were, after all, working
under more difficult conditions.

The immediate problem of inadequate accommoddtamhbeen alleviated but
by no means solved by the acquisition of Westersmbiause, and in recognition of
the difficulty, the Property Committee of the Edtica Authority, including Father
Jansen, visited Westermains on M&) 8928, regarding plans for a new school in the
grounds of Westermains House; the plan for a caimpiew primary and Secondary
school with accommodation for eleven hundred pupié&l been passed by the
Education Authority on the previous day, Majf.2 As an interim measure, re-
construction of Westermains House was underway was to be completed by
August 15", 1928.

Several minor and unrelated facts throw a litddiaonal light on the life of
the school at this crucial period; for example Wearing of sandshoes in the heavy
rain of November, 1928 serves as a reminder tleaétonomic conditions of the late
1920’s were poor. Cultural life, on the other hamadist have been reasonably healthy
in that the 1929 report draws attention to the flaat one pupil had passed the S.L.C.
(lower) examination in Greek. Again, Mr. Barry,tmweviously himself a graduate,
had graduated B.A. in August, 1928 at Dublin Unéitgt He had been working
externally for this degree, motivated by the fhettthe no longer regarded his primary
school qualifications as being adequate for thalledasecondary school, particularly
since during the 1920’s he was gradually buildimg ai staff of highly qualified
teachers; indeed the presence of honours gradoatéise staff suggests that there
were far more teachers than posts for them, artdatsacondary school could afford
to choose only the best staff available.

In September, 1929, the Education Authority’s plém establish St. Ninian’s
as a centre for Catholic education serving a widea avere obviously complete in that
the school’'s catchment area included not only ffast Dunbartonshire but also all
Stirlingshire, with one hundred and seventy pupiésselling from as far away as
Stirling, Larbert and Grangemouth. By standardsthaf time, the transportation
arrangements must have been on a considerable lecalktransport was provided by
David Lawson’s, private bus operators in Kirkirdgdh before their much later
integration into the Scottish Bus Group as parfAtexander’s (Midland) Limited.
Transport from Stirlingshire was the province of Wexander & Sons whose nearest
base to Kirkintilloch was at Kilsyth but who alsbamurse operated from garages all
over Stirlingshire. Incidentally, the first bus twipneumatic tyres to operate in
Scotland, a 32-seater Leyland, was based at Kiigyll924, and ran between Falkirk
and Glasgow, taking the same time for the jourreegi@buses to-day. Obviously the
problem of transportation of large numbers of pugdilom such a wide area to
Kirkintilloch was more apparent than real, for thes service network seems to have
been far from primitive, and, if anything was aheddts period in organisation and



vehicles used. Even the best system, howeveifhpsoverbial black sheet, and Mr.
Barry records that on January 71930, following complaints from his staff
regarding reckless driving in the East High Strdet, ordered the janitor (of all
people) to warn the driver of one of Alexandersble-deckers employed on the
school contract. No account, however, of schaolgport can hope to be completely
without some reference to the ‘rebellion’ of Augd€t38, when the Croy pupils en
masse went on a so-called ‘strike’ and refusedttend school. The Education
Authority paid W. Alexander & Sons five hundred pds a year to carry the Croy
pupils to and from St. Ninian’s. However, in 19B@ Authority decided to give the
contract for the new session to the railway compaip were able to provide
transport, though less convenient for the pupds £245.15.3d; in protest against the
inconvenience, the Croy and Condorrat pupils tdok no doubt agonizing step of
abstaining from school attendance for several daykey won their point, and a
compromise was reached. The contract finally vieidiohn Carmichael of Greenfoot
Garage, Glenboig, who was able to do the returmpufor two pounds two shillings
per day. This arrangement continued for many yaatés Carmichael’s were taken
over by Alexander’'s (Midland). By their obvioudliegal action, the inhabitants of
Croy and district had demonstrated that bureawcdscisions cannot be made on a
basis of cost alone where such decisions concemmahuweings, and the victorious
Croy ‘school strike’ is still green in the memoriekthe inhabitants of that worthy
village even to-day.

Another interesting aspect of local social histogflected in the school
records lies in regular references throughout ®20% to the closure of the school
because of veto polls; apparently influential peapbnsidered that the working class
population was wont to squander its money on diimkhe detriment of its children.
Such influential people forgot the possible existemf other factors such as poor
social conditions and wages which would hardly ptevfor a family anyway not to
mention the question of personal freedom. Thelutgm was to use Scots Law’s
sledgehammer — the veto poll — to deprive the @ of its right to drink, at least
in the area. This curious tradition continued othbKirkintilloch and Kilsyth until
very recent years. Apart from the veto poll hofideowever, life in September,
October and November, 1929 was not without incideitt September the Town
Clerk had the plans for the new school, in OctdherWestermains Bowling Green
Pavilion was destroyed by fire (and the water syfpplind to be inadequate), and in
November a window cleaner put his foot throughagsioom roof.

On January 17, 1930, the Clyde Valley Electri€tympany laid a new cable
to Westermains; the building itself, however, wasatibed in October of the same
year as being in bad condition. The report forl@/phasises that the Union Street
premises were in such bad state as to be completedplete, and notes with
satisfaction that the new (present) school on Weestis Estate was near completion.
In August, 1931, the school had twenty two secondad sixteen primary teachers;
these figures reflect a curious decline in primamyrants. The roll was as follows:
Primary — 518 pupils, Secondary — 540 includingless than two hundred and
seventy pupils from Stirlingshire; the total rolagy 1058, a figure which made the
need for the new school obvious and urgent. Irttona in September, 1931 were
that the new building would be ready for openinfpkee Christmas of that year, and
on October 1%, the process of painting was begun. The datéhfoformal opening
was fixed — Friday, November 971931, and numerous preparations were still to be
made. Road access for example, was to be improwddwider roads to allow buses
to approach the school; within the school itselfhair of pupils was to be trained for



the opening ceremonies. November 1931 saw a sefiesits to the school by a
great variety of people; Mr. Burdon, Director ofugdtion, visited on Novembef?
and arrangements were made for the opening cerenmine performed by Mr.
McKechnie, the Secretary of the Scottish Educailepartment. Dr. Stewart, H.M.1.,
paid a visit, as did the Provost and Dean of Goilthe town. On November 20the
water supply was connected.

St. Ninian’s had now reached the most significariestone in its career,
without the new building the future of the schoaul be doubtful. It must have
been obvious at the time that the claims of Stidi's to a new building and indeed
to continued existence as a secondary school deddndsome extent on the numbers
of Stirlingshire pupils attending, and that pugrism that area would not be without
Catholic secondary education within their own cgufidrever. Fortunately, St.
Modan’s High School in Stirling did not open uritB33, and even then this meant a
minor crisis in the history of St. Ninian’s.

The opening of the new St. Ninian’s was not tabewed to pass without all
due ceremony; authorities, educational, ecclesgstand civil were to be well-
represented. There were to be many distinguishe$tg, one hundred and fifty
pupils, and a school choir; the weather, predigtabid not co-operate in that
November 2% was a wet day. The school was dismissed at 18.80 and the
opening ceremony began at 2.30 p.m. The opening pexformed by Mr.
McKechnie, Secretary to the S.E.D., as stated glanathe chairman of proceedings
was Captain Allan Burns, Convenor of the DunbaiiesCounty Council. The
platform party was as follows: Archbishop Mackstio D.D., Rt. Rev. Monsignor
Kelly, Canon Mullin, D.D., the Catholic Chaplain Glasgow University, Rev. Mr.
Morrison, parish minister of Kirkintilloch, repres@tives of the architects, Mr.
Rutherford, Provost of Kirkintilloch, the headmast®lr. Barry, and a considerable
number of neighbouring headmasters.

In his lengthy remarks, Captain Burns let it bewn that the new building
had cost fifty two thousand pounds, a sum whicdag-could hardly provide a very
modest extension to a school least of all buildea one, but by standards of the
1930’s it was a great deal of money. Apart froomadishing the pupils to work
hard, Captain Burns proceeded to advise the stafieoschool as to the conduct of
their duties. He begged them not to be harsh,sagdests that corporal punishment
be used very little, if at all, and that a recomlKept of such occasions on which it
might be used, a remarkably enlightened, if alsprauatical attitude for that period.
He goes on to warn against overworking the pupitgl reaches the conclusion that
pupils should not attempt more than two subjectbligher level and two at lower
level in any one year; this advice would appeatat@® no account of the different
capabilities of different individual pupils, and uld appear to advocate the restriction
of all pupils to the rate of progress of the averagThe Chairman concluded,
predictably, by encouraging the pupils to partitepactively in games.

Archbishop Mackintosh thanked the Scottish EdocatDepartment as
represented by Mr. McKechnie for the provision loé tschool, and emphasised its
importance to the Catholic community; he was fokowby Mr. Rutherford and
Canon Kelly, and Canon Jansen proposed the votkeaoks. The Archbishop was
presented with a Missal by the school; this he ptecepromising to use it frequently
and to remember the school and its pupils everg timdid so. The guests were then
treated to tea and a tour of inspection of the beWding. The pupils were given a
holiday on the following Monday, 0November, which was, of course St. Andrew’s
Day. Thereafter the infants classes were trarefeto the new school while



everybody else was doing term examinations. THereaansfer of equipment and

materials from the old school was carried out néitavier items were transported on
a lorry provided by the County Council, but all kepstationery and smaller items
were carried by relays of pupils; wet winter weatb@nditions must have made this a
hazardous undertaking.

The school motto, ‘In Necessariis Unitas, In Duhibertas, In Omnibus
Caritas’ was selected by Father Jansen. It wagded as having been a saying of St.
Augustine of Hippo in the"™century, but is now considered to have been allyin
of earlier date than this. It means, approximatélgity in essentials; freedom in
what is uncertain (i.e. freedom of belief); loveai things’. In the entrance hall of
the new school were two large statues, one of Hoeefl Heart, the other of Our Lady.
Every room was supplied with a crucifix presentegdilie Archdiocese of Glasgow;
the Education Committee supplied all other furrdtand equipment. Probably the
most significant consequence of the opening ofrtee school came on the "16
February, 1932 when Mr. Burdon, Director of Edumatilet it be known that the
Scottish Education Department had at last decidegkdnt the school official status
and title as a secondary school; such recognitazhformerly been withheld not on
any shortcoming regarding results but becausec8f dh suitable premises. The new
building amply filled this need. The school waswnofficially a secondary school,
and its title was likewise recognised; no longeswato be known as Kirkintilloch
(Town) R.C. School, but as St. Ninian’s R.C. Higth&ol, Kirkintilloch; in fact the
title ‘St Ninian’s’ was being used and acceptedfficially for some years before this
official recognition was granted. The recognitims made applicable as from
January 1, 1932. The roll was now 1070 pupils, of whom fivendred and sixty
eight were in the secondary department, and twat@ehand seventy were from
Stirlingshire.  The importance of the inclusion tifese pupils from outwith
Dunbartonshire was soon to become obvious.

After the new building had been opened and equipraed pupils moved into
it, school life very soon resumed its establishmatine, with several new departures;
in summer 1932 exchange visits with pupils in Likere arranged for the first time;
visits to the town council’s spray baths were nowhiag of the past, since the new
building had facilities for physical education whidncluded showers and were
generally ahead of their time. Two early dismissatre granted in September, 1932
to mark entirely unconnected events; on SeptemB&rthe fifteenth centenary of the
death of St. Ninian, the patron of the parish am® @f the earliest Christian
missionaries to Scotland was celebrated; on tfieS&btember, the first centenary of
the death of less saintly, more worldly figure, Bialter Scott. In November, 1932
came the origin of morning and afternoon intervases of rest for weary pupils, and
havens of sanity for even wearier teachers. Amtewé greater importance to all
concerned was the opening ofi September, 1933 of St. Modan’s High School,
Stirling, a full secondary school to serve all dirligshire; the consequences could
have been far-reaching. The loss of at least twadted pupils could and did raise
doubts in certain quarters as to the need for ¢éhwescthool in Kirkintilloch, at least as
a Catholic School. By November 1933, the roll ladpped to 907 pupils, and by
February &, 1934, was below nine hundred; the new buildind been intended to
accommodate more than eleven hundred pupils. fdresfer of the Stirlingshire
pupils resulted in empty classrooms; on the otlamdh Townhead Public School was
grossly overcrowded. The matter came to a headeétter dated July 3711934 from
the Education Authority to the headmaster of Shiddi's High School, Mr. William
Barry.



The plan contained in this letter was that fourN8hian’s classrooms were to
be put at the disposal of Townhead Public Schopllguthe latter were to have their
own teachers and be under the general authoritiyeaf own headmaster. Mr. Barry
is urged to co-operate with the Townhead headmastheich he did, although
obviously this ‘imperium in imperio’ could hardlyakie been desirable to him. He is
further instructed for some unstated reason, tarenthat the Townhead pupils had
separate intervals and lunch breaks from the StiaNis pupils. Finally he is told
that he is in charge of the Townhead pupils withis school in case of ‘any
difficulties’. The St. Ninian’s headmaster was ééeing called upon to accept and
co-operate in a situation which called for endlas$ and care on his part. This set-up
should not be regarded as an early and enlightattethpt at integration of Catholic
and non-Catholic pupils; any chance of integraticas effectively quashed by the
separate intervals and lunch break arrangements. August, 1934, the new
arrangement came into effect, with rooms ten tadéh amongst those to-day used
by the Department of History and Modern Studiesndpallocated to four first year
classes, 1a, b, ¢ and d, one hundred and twelvdspapd four teachers, from
Townhead Public School. Presumably this arrangémias not regarded as desirable
by all the Townhead pupils, parents and staff amyenthan it was by the Catholic
community. The time had not come in the ‘thirtfes integration, and anyway, as
suggested above, this was not meant to be integratiwvas merely an expedient, and
a poor one at that, to obviate the need to prosaicew school for the non-Catholic
population who were obviously in need of one. Dokl ahead, by 1935 the
Townhead qualifying class had arrived in St. Nirsaalso, and some Catholic parents
were beginning to see the whole issue in dangerosskttarian terms more
reminiscent of modern Ulster than of Scotland. stioh people this arrangement was
the thin end of a sectarian wedge which would foheeCatholic school out of its new
building and hand it over to the ‘public’ schoolpgis. Events, however, in early
1937 were to suggest that these fears were nimuiided. The idea of using part of
St. Ninian’s for the Townhead pupils had originddgen opposed on the grounds that
the school leaving age was to be raised to fifygears of age in 1936, and that under
these circumstances the accommodation availab$t.iNinian’s would be adequate
but not excessive for the Catholic pupils of Kitikioch and the rest of East
Dunbartonshire. Yet the Townhead pupils had camsestated above, and the move
to raise the leaving age had been defeated. THausituation in the eyes of the
Catholic community was more grave by the end of6193Fears were further
exacerbated by the publication in the local presdanuary, 1937 of reports headed
‘Fate of St. Ninian’s School’, which reports suggessdarkly not to say mysteriously
that the Catholic pupils be moved to some placgelghere in the Burgh’. Further
details suggested that the plan was, in view okthety places left in St. Ninian’s by
the opening of St. Modan’s High School and by tegation of the raising of the
leaving age, that the Catholic pupils be transtetcethe old Townhead School, and
the pupils from the latter be accommodated perntgném the new St. Ninian’s
building. Reaction was swift, and loud, and thessage clear. On January"11937
a meeting of parents, former pupils and parish®mgmnerally, was held in the old
Union Street building, a meeting presided over bByhEr D. Quigley in the absence
through illness of Father Jansen. This assemidggquhtwo resolutions; these were
that the Diocesan Board request the Education Ctteenio remove at the earliest
opportunity all the non-Catholic pupils from St.nNin’s on the grounds that their
presence was resented by the Catholic community;eermenical toleration. They
further set up a committee and made representatoigalter Elliott, Secretary of



State for Scotland, and to Sir James Peck, Segretarthe Scottish Education
Department. As a result of this action, makingmupnanimity of voice what it may
have lacked in tolerance, the transfer plans fietiugh. Alternative proposals such as
the withdrawal of Twechar pupils from Townhead toeav school were considered,
and the Townhead school was altered and extenBgcgummer 1937 the Townhead
pupils had been withdrawn from St. Ninian’s, and thcident was concluded, save
for a certain atmosphere of suspicion which musehgersisted for a time at least.

Overshadowed in our eyes but probably more regetuple at the time, be
they pupils, teachers or parents, were the dayakp elents of the mid-nineteen
thirties, domestic, local and national. To thednsn of the school, the background
controversy regarding the school’s future, outlimedhe previous chapter, tends to
exclude other events, such as celebrations to tharlaunching of the Queen Mary at
Clydebank on September261934, the demands, adequately met, by Dr. Bénay,
the parents of certain Croy pupils should guarattieg sons’ future good behaviour
and an end of their truanting adventures, and e €¢hocolate, films in the Black
Bull Cinema, and early dismissal for all pupils 8h May, 1935 to mark the silver
jubilee of King George V and Queen Mary. Pupilgaevsitting bursary examinations
for Glasgow University, pupils were getting applats Hallowe’en; pupils were
attending (compulsorily) armistice day servicestir school every 11 November,
and pupils were on holiday on the™df November, 1935 for the General Election.
Dr. Barry was still examining ‘repetition’ in theipary school and ‘speaking to’ the
parents of boys caught ‘pilfering’. In addition hecords with scrupulous care the
death on the 29January, 1936 at 11.55 p.m. of King George V;len22* all pupils
were assembled to hear the broadcast of the acnesfshis successor to the throne.

National events still made themselves felt whermpapils got a free hand-out
of the maiden voyage of the ship Queen Mary fromat&ampton. Later in 1936, the
illicit removal of other people’s apples from gandan Bellevue Road by some pupils
occasioned police intervention. A persistent witen of the poor economic
conditions of the time is found in the report of t@wer 1936 to the School
Management Committee regarding the attendance mfspm light sandshoes during
wet, cold weather; national problems are refle¢tej on the 18 December, 1936,
the teachers, with perhaps surprising interesgrabked in Dr. Barry’s room to hear a
broadcast intimating the abdication of Edward VIIOn the 18, George VI was
proclaimed king from the Town Hall. As climax foese events, sports were held on
the 12" May, 1937 to mark the event of the coronation ebfge VI; the pupils were
given lemonade, pastry, medallions, cups, penbasidkerchiefs and a ‘Punch and
Judy’ show in honour of ‘their majesties’.

When the new session opened in August, 1937, thenfiead pupils no
longer attended St. Ninian’s, and the threat of gbkool being taken over by the
whole of the ‘public’ school had faded away comglet However, the September of
1937 was overshadowed for all in Kirkintilloch addstrict, and for the Catholic
population in particular by the burning to deathairbothy in Eastside of ten lIrish
workers from Achill Sound; the men had been emploga the potato harvest. A
collection in St. Ninian’s School provided a wreath



